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Dear Ms. Withrow: 
 
 
At the request of John Chaix we have evaluated the process and sanitary wastewater flows 
associated with the proposed Micro Winery Use Permit application.  We have also analyzed the 
capacity of the existing residential sanitary wastewater system serving the existing structures to 
determine if it is adequate to serve the proposed changes in use.   
 
The Use Permit application under consideration proposes the construction and operation of a 
winery with the following characteristics:  
 

• Wine Production: 
o 5,000 gallons of wine per year  
o Fermentation and aging onsite 

 

• Employees: 
o 1 employee 

 

• Marketing Plan: 
o Daily Tours and Tastings by Appointment 

 10 visitors per day maximum 
 



 

 

Existing improvements on the property include a main residence, vineyards, ag and accessory 
residential buildings, three groundwater wells, paved, dirt and gravel driveways and the utility 
infrastructure associated with this type of rural residential and agricultural development. 
 
A new structure will be built to house restrooms for the proposed micro-winery and production 
will be located within an existing building that will be improved for the intended micro-winery 
use.   
 
Please see the plans prepared by Roger Wolffe, Architect (attached) for approximate locations 
of existing and proposed facilities. 
 
The remainder of this letter describes the existing wastewater disposal system, peak flows 
associated with the proposed changes in use for the micro-winery and our analysis and 
recommendations related to how wastewater from the micro-winery can be handled onsite.   
 
Existing Septic System  
The existing residence is served by a septic tank and leach field system located to the southwest 
of the residence.  The leach field is located within the road setback and drainage ditch setback 
and therefore is not viable to handle the new flows from the micro-winery. 
 
Proposed Winery Process Wastewater Design Flows 
 
It is planned that the micro-winery will be a co-production type facility and will ferment and age 
wine onsite but no barrel washing or tank washing will occur onsite. Therefore, there will be no 
process wastewater generated onsite at this micro-winery facility.   
 
Proposed Winery Sanitary Wastewater Design Flows 
 
The peak sanitary wastewater flow from the winery is calculated based on the number of winery 
employees and the number of daily visitors for tastings.  In accordance with Table 4 of the Napa 
County “Regulations for Design, Construction, and Installation of Alternative Sewage Treatment 
Systems” we have used a design flow rate of 3 gallons per day per visitor for tastings.  Based on 
these assumptions, the peak winery sanitary wastewater flows are calculated as follows: 
 
Daily Tastings 

Peak Sanitary Wastewater Flow = 10 visitors per day X 3 gallons per visitor  
Peak Sanitary Wastewater Flow = 30 gpd 
 
Residential Sanitary Wastewater Design Flow 
It is our understanding that the main house consists of three bedrooms.  The total residential 
sanitary wastewater flow is based on 150 gpd per bedrooms as follows: 
 
Total Residential Sanitary Wastewater Design Flow = 150 gpd / bedroom x 3 bedrooms  
 



Total Residential Sanitary Wastewater Design Flow = 450 gpd 
 
Combined Sanitary Wastewater Flow 
The combined sanitary wastewater flow includes the flow from both the winery and residence 
and is calculated as follows: 
 
Combined Sanitary Wastewater Flow = 30 gpd + 450 gpd 
 
Combined Sanitary Wastewater Flow = 480 gpd 
 
Existing Septic System Capacity 
 
As noted above the existing septic system is located within road and drainage course setbacks so 
it is assumed that it is adequate for the existing residential uses only.   
 
Recommendations 
Based on the conditions observed during our site evaluation on June 7, 2023 (E23-00251), we 
recommend a new standard septic system be installed to serve the micro-winery facility sanitary 
wastewater flows.   The application rate for the septic system is 0.33 gpd/sf and the acceptable 
soil depth is 72 inches which allows for three foot deep trenches with 4 sf of sidewall per lineal 
foot of trench.  Using these parameters the required length of trench is calculated as follows:   
 

Required Length of Trench = 30 gpd × 
1 square foot

0.33 gpd
 × 

1 lineal foot

4 square feet
 

 
Required Length of Trench = 23 lineal feet 
 
Based on the site maps ACE has determined that there is enough area to install a code minimum 
system with 100 lf of leach line in the area of Test Pits #3 & #6 as shown on the Chaix Family 
Vineyards Micro-Winery Wastewater Exhibit prepared by ACE. 
 
Reserve Area 
 
The reserve must accommodate the three bedrooms from the main house (450 gpd) as well as 
the micro-winery (30 gpd) for a total of 480 gpd.  Based on the conditions observed during our 
site evaluation on June 7, 2023 (E23-00251), we recommend the reserve area be a pretreatment 
and subsurface drip type septic system located in the area of Test Pits @1, 2, 4 & 5.  The 
application rate for the septic system is 0.6 gpd/sf and 200% reserve is required for this type of 
system.  Using these parameters, the required reserve area is calculated as follows:   
 

Required Length of Trench = 480 gpd × 
1 square foot

0.6 gpd
 × 200% 

 
Required Length of Trench = 1,600 square feet 



 
At least 1,800 sf of reserve area is available.  The reserve area is shown on the Chaix Family 
Vineyards Micro-Winery Wastewater Exhibit prepared by ACE. 
 
Summary 
 
The calculations presented above illustrate that the sanitary wastewater flows associated with 
the proposed Micro-Winery Use Permit can be accommodated with a new small standard septic 
system.  Furthermore, process wastewater will not be generated onsite and therefore the project 
is not subject to winery process wastewater disposal regulations at this time.   
 
We trust that this provides the information you need to process the subject Micro-Winery Use 
Permit application.  Please feel free to contact us at (707) 320-4968 if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Applied Civil Engineering Incorporated 
 
By: 
 
       
Michael R. Muelrath  RCE 67435 
Principal 
 
Copy:  
 John Chaix, Chaix Family Vineyards (via email) 
 Roger Wolfe (via email) 
 
Attachments: 
 Site Plan prepared by Roger Wolffe, Architect 

Chaix Family Vineyards Micro-Winery Wastewater Exhibit 

Mike
Signature










